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The Locomotive Fairfax

Historic Fairfax City, Inc. A Brief History
"Fare Fac - Say Do"' by William Page Johnson, |1
Executive Officers

JohnA.C Kaith President The steam powered |locomotive, or iron horse, wasamarvel

JenéeL. Lindner Vice-Pres. of mechanical engineeringinitsday and wasclearly aworld-
AlbertL. Leightley Treasurer ; ; : ; ;
LindaM. Baringhaus  Secretary ‘ changllng te.chr?ol .ogy. TheAmeri c.an publ I(.:W85faSCI nat.ed with
& these gigantic hissing, smoke-belching, snorting monstersin much
HildieCarney Director - .
PatriciaA. Fabio Director the same way that later generations would be awed by the
LindaC. Goldstein Director . .
D. LeeHubbard Director automobile, airplane, and spacetravel.
Hon. Wm. Page Johnson, 11 D!reaor
Bey Leonad ediond The Orange and Alexandria Railroad was chartered by the Virginia
Pty g;;gg; General Assembly in 1848 to enable the port city of Alexandria, Virginiato
mary S Petersen Director compete with the farm markets of Baltimore and Richmond. Ground was
on. Penny A. Rood Director
MarkA. Towery Director broken for the new line on Water Street, Alexandria, March 4, 1850.*
Edward C. Trexler, Jr. Director ] ] ] ]
\'\;I ;ttatltew T. West g?rgor Construction began almost immediately and was compl eted to Lee’'s Sation,
Irector
Vacant Director Fairfax County by September 1851. L ee's Station isnow known as Fairfax
Station. Theinitial passenger farefrom Alexandriato Lee's Station wasjust
.75 cents.?

There was local support to
build aspur, or branch linedirectly
to Fairfax Court House. However,
thisextension of thelinewasnever §
undertaken. !

The O&A reached Culpeper
in late 1852 and by March 1854,
the line had been extended to
Gordonsville, in Orange County. At
Gordonsvillethe O& A connected
with theVirginiaCentral Railroad
which ranto Richmond. Warrenton,
in Fauquier County, wasoriginally
on the proposed route of the O& A  H-ERSES
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An early American type 4-4-0 locomotive on the Orange & Alexandria Railroad c. 1862
Photo credit: Timothy H. O'Sullivan. Photo source: Library of Congress.

Continued on Page 6 (Eg
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From the Desk of the President-
Spring 2018

Itishard for meto believethat George Mason
University haditsbeginningsin Fairfax 60 yearsago! In
oneway 1958 seemsalongtimeago, and yet |
remember pretty well thesmal cluster of low lying
buildingsthat appeared at theend of University Drive.
Which camefirst—thebuildingsor University Drive?|
do not remember that, but | know that what had begun
asan extenson of theUniversity of Virginiamoved to
Fairfax after the Town of Fairfax purchased and
donated 150 acresfor the college’'snew site. | wishl
knew more about the history of the school that has
becomethelargest public research university in Virginia

Weall have an opportunity to learn much more
about the beginningsand history of GMU at HFCI's
Annua Mesting, whichwill beheld May 2, 2018 at
7:30pmat Old Town Hall (Upstairs). Wewill be
enlightened by threefantastic speskers: Dr. Angel
Cabrera, the President of the University; David Meyer,
Mayor of the City of Fairfax; and Robert Vay the GMU
Digita Collectionsand ExhibitionsArchivigt.

Pleasejoin meat thisyear’ sAnnua Mesetingto
learn abit about what Historic Fairfax City Inc. has
been up to over the past year and to hear afascinating
presentati on about the history of George Mason
University. | look forward to seeing youthere.

JohnA. C.Keith

Visit us on the web:

HFCI Webgtd

http:/Mamw.higtoricfairfax.org
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At the Fairfax Museum
and Historic Blenheim...

Fairfax Museum and Visitor Center

TheFairfax Sory - Hamill Gallery. Permanent Fairfax
history exhibition.

“ Chalkboardsto Smartboards: Public Schoolsin the
County of Fairfax and Fairfax City” - Gano Gallery.
Thisexhibition exploresthe history of County and City
public schoolsfromtheir creation, massive devel opment
and growth periods; from segregated school stointegration;
changing technol ogies; new structures and notable and
everyday students. Through mid-July 2017.

Fairfax Museum and Visitor Center “ Second
Sunday” Programs

Programs are held at 2 p.m. on the second Sunday of
each month. Unless otherwise noted, programsare held
at the Fairfax Museum and Visitor Center, 10209 Main
Street. Free (unless noted). Check back to find out about
additional programs planned throughout the year.
Information: 703-385-8414.

Saturday, May 5, 2 p.m. SPECIA EXTRA PROGRAM
“Ode to Flanders Field: World War | Quilts and
Textiles’

Join SueReich, quilt historian and collector, for adiscussion
of thefabricsand designsof World War 1 quilts.

Sunday, May 6, 2 p.m.
“The General in the Garden: George Washington's
Landscape at Mount Vernon”

Adam Erby, Assistant Curator at Mount Vernon, will
exploreWashington'sinfluenceover thegardensat Mount
Vernon and the preservation of the landscapes by the
Mount Vernon LadiesAssociation. Book signingand sae
will follow thetalk.

Sunday, June 10, 2 p.m.
“The Yanks are Coming (Eventually): Hearing
America Change 1914-1919”




Volume 15, Issue 2

The Fair Facs Gazette

Spring 2018

Historica performer and music historian Michael Lasser
will discuss songsfrom World War 1 and how theera's
popular music traced the changesin American attitudes
toward thewar.

Sunday, July 8, 2p.m.

"Virginiansin the Great War: Uncovering One
Sate's Role in Mobilizing for, Fighting, and
Commemorating World War 1”

Tak and book signing with Dr. Lynn Rainville, Associate
Dean, Sweet Briar College.

Sunday, August 12, 2 p.m.
TBA

Sunday, September 9, 2 p.m.

“Bringing Our Boys Home: Arlington National
Cemetery, The First World War, and the Cration of
the Tomb of the Unknown Soldier.”

Christopher Warren, Senior Historian at Arlington National
Cemetery, will discusstheimpact of World War | onthe
cemetery and the history behind the creation of the Tomb
of theUnknown Soldier.

D - 4 E———— .

Civil War Interpretive Center at Historic Blenheim

PERMANENT EXHIBITION

“Blenheim’s Civil War Soldier Signatures: A Diary
onWalls’ . Exploresthelocal Fairfax Court House
history and the experiencesof soldierswhowroteonthe
wallsof theWillcoxonhome (Historic Blenheim.) The
replicaatticisalife-sized replicaof the houseattic that
showstheclearest graffiti inthehouse.

Historic Blenheim Civil War Interpretive Center Program
SeriesProgramsarefreeand held at 2 p.m. on Saturdays
(unless otherwise noted) at the Civil War Interpretive
Center at Historic Blenheim, 3610 Old Lee Highway.
Information: 703-591-0560.

Saturday, May 19 2 p.m.
“ Graffiti Symposium”

Speakersand topicsinclude: Kim O’ Connell, the history
of Civil War Greffiti; Conservator ChrisMills, thetechnical
side of graffiti conservation, and Conservator Kirsten
Moffitt, graffiti investigation and conservation at Historic
Blenheim. Sponsored by “ TheNorthern VirginiaCivil War
Graffiti Trail.” Call 703-591-6728 for fee/registration
details. Spaceislimited.

Saturday, June23, 2 p.m.

“Midnightin America: Darkness, Sleep, and Dreams
during the Civil War.”

Christopher Newport University Professor Jonathan W.
White, PhD, will discuss how the horrors and rigors of
war for both Union and Confederate soldiers penetrated
their livesat night through deeplessnessand dreams.

Saturday, July 28, 2 p.m.
“This Sorrowful War: A Veterinary Surgeon in the
1862 Shenandoah Valley Campaign”

Based onamemoir written by GustavusAsche-Berg—a
German-born veterinarian who served with the 4th New
York Volunteer Cavalry during the disastrous 1862
Shenandoah Valley Campaign, Phil Teigen, PhD, Retired
Deputy Chief, History of Medicine Division, National
Library Of Medicine. Asche-Berg;; itincludesdetail sabout
daily lifeinacavary regiment; it providesanearly unique
account of horsesin the Civil War, with detailsabout their
training, their use, and their “ sorrowful” fate.

Saturday, August 25, 2 p.m.
“Walt Whitman in Washington”

Author Garrett Peck will spesk of Wat Whitman'sdefinitive
decadein DC. Hisjourney to the nation’s capital at the
height of the Civil War tofind hisbrother George, awounded
Union officer, culminated with Whitman serving as a
volunteer “hospital missionary” for threeyears. With the
1865 publication of Drum-Taps, Whitman became poet
laureate of the Civil War.
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Other Information of I nter est

Volunteer sand Docentsare sought for thecity’shistoric
buildings: Retdiffe-Allison-Pozer House, Historic Blenheim
and the Civil War Interpretive Center and Fairfax Museum
and Visitor Center. Additionally, volunteers may be
interested in asssting withwalking toursand specia events.
For information email Susan.Gray@fairfaxva.gov, or call

703-385-8415.

Sdect historic buildingsareopen during city specid events,
including the Chocolate Lovers Festival, Civil War
Weekend, Independence Day Celebration, Fall Festival
and Festival of Lightsand Carols. To arrange group tours
of city-owned historic buildings email
Susan.Gray @fairfaxva.gov or call 703-385-8414.

Thecity has published afree self-guided walking tour
brochure that provides a brief history of the city and
noteworthy buildingsin the Old Town Fairfax Historic
Didrict. ThisbrochureisavalablefromtheFarfax Museum
and Visitor Center, 10209 Main Street. 703-385-8414.

Sdect higtoric buildingsareopen during city specid events,
including the Chocolate Lovers Festival, Civil War
Weekend, | ndependence Day Celebration, Fall Festival
and Festival of Lightsand Carols. To arrangegroup tours
of city-owned historic buildingsemail. 703-385-8414.

TheHigoric Digrict waslisted in the National Register of
Historic Placesin 1987. Itincludesavariety of building
and monument typesand styles, including:

Fairfax Courthouse (1800)
Ratcliffe-Allison House (1812)
JoshuaGunnell House (¢.1830)
William Gunnell House(c.1835)
Ford House (¢.1835)

Fairfax Elementary School (1873)*
Old Fairfax Jail (1885)

Old Town Hall (1900)

Marr Monument (1904)

*Fairfax Elementary School wasconvertedintotheFairfax
Museum & Visitor Center in 1992.
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Exhibition at Ratcliffe-Allison-Pozer House

Location: 10386 Main Street, Fairfax, VA 22030
Open Saturdaysfrom 11am-2pm May-October for free
tours; or call 703.385.8414 for tour appointment.

“Dr. Kate Waller Barrett: Mother to Many” -
Exhibitionexaminesthelifeof thisprominent socid reformer
of the Progressive Era, who saved the early 19th-century
Ratcliffe-Allison-Pozer Housefrom demoalitionin 1923.

That Whole Cousins Once
Removed Thing Explained

First cousinsshareagrandparent, second cousinssharea
great-grandparent, third cousins share a great-great-
grandparent, and so on. Thedegreeof cousinhood (“firgt,”

“second,” “third,” etc.) denotesthenumber of generations
between two cousinsand their nearest common ancestor.
Theterm*removed’ refersto the number of generations
separating the cousins themselves. Therefore, your
mother'sfirs cousinisasoyour first cousin, onceremoved.

Another practical examplecan befound onpage 13. Rev.
Frank Page and my great-grandfather were direct 4"
cousins. Sincel am now threegenerationsremoved from
my great-grandfather Rev. Frank Page is also my 4"
cousin, 3timesremoved.

DUES ALERT

If you have not paid your annual Historic Fairfax City,
Inc. duesthey are now due. Please remit based on the
schedulebe ow. Annua duespaymentsshould bemade
out and sent to: Historic Fairfax City, Inc., 10209
Main Street, Fairfax, VA 22030.

Your annua dues help HFCI to continue to meet its
basic goa of preserving the unique history of the City
of Fairfax. Tax deductable donations over and above
dues payments are encouraged.



Volume 15, Issue 2

The Fair Facs Gazette

Spring 2018

The surveyurs of the Orange and Alexandria
railroad are running a more southerly route
than the one tollowing Lonz Branch ih Fairfax
County, and are encamped near Paine’s Church
—they anticipite complefing thut ronte within
two weeks, and in a month or two the decision
will be made upon the three lines,

Alexandna Gazette, October 29, 1849, p. 2,¢. 2.

Locomotive on the 0. & A, K. R,
The first locomotive was put upon the track

of the Orange and Alexandria Rail Road yes-
terday, and in the afternoon steam was got up,
and the locomotive was ran over the line from
the nonh end of Union street, to the tunnel, on
Wilkes street. The performance was good,
and gave general satisfaction.

Great numbers of our citizens collected, and
much joy was manifested at the successful
commencement of rail road travel through our

ww nl
Alexcandria Gazette, May 7, 1851, p. 2, c. 1.

A NEW LOCOMOTIYE ESTABLISHMENT.

Mesirs, Sxitu and Pruxixs, of Alersndris, Vieginia,
(nays the Railroad Journal,) have commenced the manufac-
ture of locomatives on a pretty extensive scale. They em-
play abont one hondred end fifty hands, and sre now mang-
factaring at the rals of sbout twenty locomotives a year.
Mt. Perkins was for many yearasuperintendent of machinery
and repaire upon the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad, und bes
long emjoyed the reputation of baing one of vhe most ekilful
and practical mechonics in the country. Thera is probably
no person among uy betler capable of constructicg a good en-
gine, or a better judge of wark. The abore cstablishment
is now rngiged o fi'ling ordets for the Orange and Alesag.
drin and the Manasess Gap railroads, torminatiog in Alexan-
drin. The above establishment is one of the beneficlal re-
sults of the railroad movement in Virginia. But for ratlroads
in that State, it oever would have existe]. The railroad is
the pioneer, and where they are consimeted a thourand
branches of industiry follow in their traiz. They crcatea des
mand for labor to construct snd maintsin them, and, by open-
iog up 2 maket to every articls of use or consumplion, sti-
mulate every kind of industry. As the Sgoth is bzhind the
Nonh in their manufacturiog establishments, we hope to see
them give a liberal patronage to their avyn works—s course
which will be of metosl benefit ta all parties.

Daily National Intelligencer, August 21, 1851, p. 3, c.4.
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Some handsome, and well built passenger
cars, procured undera contract with Smith &
Perkins, of this place, were placed on Tues-
day afternoon, on the track of the Orange and
Alexandria Rail Road. These cars ate of the
most modern construction, well furnished, and
easy in their motion. The facilities now, will
induce, at once, the commencement of travel
and the transportation of freight.

Alexandria Gazette, September 18, 1851, p. 3, c. 3.

Local Jtems,

The beautiful new Locomotive ALrxaxpra,
from the Virginia Locomotive and Car Works
of Smith & Perkine, was placed on the lrack
of the Orange and Alexandria Rail Road, yes.
terday moming.  All competent to judge, who
have examined the machinery of this Locomo-
tive, speak in the highest terms of its accuracy,
strength, and finish, 1t has the lalest improve-
ments, and amongst others, « shilting tire, by
which the wheels are saved. Trials were
made everal times, and the speed and runeing
of the engine were equal to expectation, We
congratulale Messrs. Smith & Perking upon
this exhibition of their ability to turn out such
work from their establishment, and the Jail
Road Company upon presenting us with such
a specimen of home manufacture—equal in
every respect, if not superjor, to the hest cn
rines ever hrought from the Northern citics.~
We wish the “Alexandria,” her buildere, and
her owners, every success.

Alexcandria Gazette, September 26, 1851, p. 3, c. 2.

Continued on Page 11 (gé-
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but was bypassed by a more direct realignment.
However, abranch line to Warrenton was compl eted
by the spring of 1853.

The Manassas Gap Railroad joined the O& A at
Manassas. The MGRRwasthefirst rail lineto crossthe
Blue Ridge Mountains. The MGRR line reached
Strasburg by 1854 and connected Alexandriawith the
upper Shenandoah Valley.

Smith & Perkins
“ Pioneers of their own Improvements” 3

The Smith & PerkinsLocomotive Workshad its
beginningsin the 1830’s when Charleston, Virginia
brothers, ThomasWilliam Smith* and Richards Carson
Smith® opened a foundry and machine shop at
Alexandria, Virginiaabout 1833.° Thefledgling firm
manufactured three locomotivesin 1837, but quickly
switched to the “manufacture of stream engines,
machinery and castings of every description.”

LEXANDRIA FOUNDRY and STEAY EN-
GINE MANUPACTOR Yeo—Llocanuivs and Sa-
rionary Enginew, heavy lronand Hrass Cacings, Church Belle,
aud inery of every hisd. Genlleiaen visiing Washing-
tud are mvited toeall aund see the works,
THOMAS W, 8)ITH & Co.

War 4==enly Alexandiis, March 1.

National Intelligencer, January 6, 1837, p. 4, c. 4.

In 1837 there were only about of 1,000 miles of
railroad track in the United States. By 1850 the total
mileage of track laid exceeded 7,000 miles and was
growingrapidly.” Inthespring of 1850 Smith & Perkins
made“ the building of Locomotive Engines & Cars, &c.
the principal branch of [its] business.”® In February of
1851, Thatcher E. Perkins’, master mechanic of the
Baltimore& Ohio (B&O) railroad, joined with Thomas
W. and Richards C. Smith to form thefirm of Smith &
Perkins.'® Operating under the name of the Virginia
Locomotive & Car Works, their first locomotive, the
Orange, was compl eted in three months, and went to

the Orange & AlexandriaRailroad.

Over thenext severa years, Smith & Perkinsbuilt
almost all of thelocomotivesand rolling stock for the
Orange & Alexandria and Manassas Gap
Railroads.'*1?1314 The |ocomotives produced for the
Orange & Alexandria Railroad were all named after
counties (or places) through which theline passed, while
the locomotives produced for the Manassas Gap
Railroad were simply numbered. 151617

Orange& Alexandria L ocomotives

Orange May 1851 T.W.& R.C. Smith,
Alexandria, VA®
Alexandria Sept. 1851 Smith & Perkins,
Alexandria, VA
Virginia Sept. 1851 Swinburne,Smith &
Co., Patterson, NJ°
Fairfax Nov. 1851 Smith & Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Fauquier Sept. 1852 Smith & Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Prince William Feb. 1853 Smith& Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Culpeper May 1854 Smith & Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Orange Oct. 1854 Smith& Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Albemarle Sept. 1855 Smith & Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Rapidan Jan. 1856 Smith & Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Rappahannock Jan. 1856 Smith& Perkins,
Alexandria, VA%
Warrenton July 1856 NorrisLocomotive

Works, Phila., PA%
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The Smith & Perkins locomotive works were
located on the south side of Wolfe at Union Street with
177 feet of frontage on the Potomac River and shipping
wharves. The 48,000 squarefoot facility wasextensive
and consisted of athree story machine shop, tool shop,
blacksmith shop, boiler shop, car-building shop all of
which were constructed of brick. A separate 84,000
squarefoot foundry building, also built of brick, was
bounded by Wilkes, Pitt, Gibbon, and St. Asaph
Streets. Both facilitiesfronted directly on the Orange
& AlexandriaRailroad.®

Smith & Perkinsalso produced locomotivesfor
the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad, PennsylvaniaCentral
Railroad, New York Erie, Hudson River Railroad,
Central Ohio Railroad, Pennsylvania& Ohio Railroad,
George'sCreek Coal and Iron Company (akaGeorge's
Creek Railroad and Coal and Iron Company of
Cumberland).?* By the spring of 1853, they had
produced more than a dozen locomotives and 400
passenger and freight cars.®

TheFairfax

Thelocomotive Fairfax wasthe second engine
built by thefirm of Smith & Perkins®3*in Alexandria,
Virginia for the Orange & Alexandria Railroad in
November 1851.% Thefirst wasthe Alexandria.

The design was a4-4-0, indicating the machine
had four leading wheels on two axles, four powered
and coupled driving wheelsontwo axles, and notrailing
wheels. Thistype of locomotive was popular in the

The naw and beautiful locomotive “Fairfzx"’
'“il esterday afternoon placed upon the track of
range and Alexsndrin Ruilrosd  8She 15 of
the “:I:u ar the ““Alexandria,”" with improve-
meénts. The “Fuirfax’ was munufactured at the
extepsive worke of Messrs. Smith & Perkins, of
this town, and really reflects high credit upen =l
engaged in her construction,

Baltimore Sun, November 14, 1851, p. 4, c. 1.

second half of the 19" c. Due to the large numbers
that were produced in the United States, the 4-4-0is
commonly known asthe American type of locomotive.

Financial difficulties caused Smith & Perkinsto
cease operations in January 1855. A proposed
relocation of the company to Zanesville, Ohio and
access to expanding western markets apparently did
not occur.* An auction notice of the“ Manufacturing
Establishment of the Virginia Locomotive and Car
Works (formerly Smith & Perkins)”, appeared in
December 1855.3” The company temporarily resumed

R. C. SMITIL, T. PERKINS,

SMITH & PERKINY’
LOCOMOTIVE AND CAR WORKS,
ALEXANDRIA, VA,

RE preparad with increased fucil'liea to conduct the busi-
ness heretofore carried on by them, and solicit orders for

LOCOMOTIVE ENGINES,
Stationary Engines and Boilers,

Cars of All Deseriptions,

CHILLED CARWHEELS
AND AXLES,

CASTINGS OF ALL KINDS.
They heg leavs to refer for the character of their Engines,
@tc, to the rollowing Companies :—

Mapassas Gap BR. K. Co. Ceotral Ohio Railroad Co.

Orange & Alexindrin R, R, Co. | Pennaylvania Rallroad Qo.

Baltimore & Ohio Railroad Qo. | Ohio & Penn'a R, K. On.
Goeorgae's Creok Coal and Iron Company,

Arexaworia, May i3th, 1857, 2m32

Smith & Perkins advertisement featuring an image of the iconic
American 4-4-0 type locomotive. The Fairfax was a 4-4-0.
Ametican Railroad Journal, August 22, 1857, v. 13, n. 34.

Continued on Page 10 w’
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Fairfax City News
50 Years Ago

First Negro Is in Race
For Council in Fairfax

I o el
ol

Henry A. Minor, 37, has be-
come the first Negro ever to
seek elected office in Fairfax
City.

The Navy Department person-
nel specialist announced his can-
didacy last night.

If he wins a council seat in the
June 11 nonpartisan city elec-
tion, he will become the ({irst
Negro to hold elective office in
Northern Virginia since the Re-
construction era.

Also announcing his candidacy
for a council seat was Leonard
A. Mobley, 47, an economist with
the U.S. Department of Com-
merce.

8

Minor said he decided to run
because of his work in the area
o{t equal employment opportu-
nity.

“My work has made me
aware of the things that need to
be done here in Fairfax,”’” he
said.

Minor emphasized that he did
not consider himself primarily a
Negro candidate. ‘““I want to rep-
resent and help both races,’” he
said. .

“My biggest concern is the
young people. Although the city
has parks, there is no place for
them to meet. We need a com-
munity center so they won’t
drive through the streets in hot-
rods and congregate in drive-in
restaurants,”” Minor explained.

Minor has lived in Fairfax
City since 1958, when he moved
from Vienna. Active in commu-
nity organizations, he and his
family live at 111 East School St.

Mobley, president of the Fair-
fax High School Student-
Parent-Teachers Association,
said that, if elected he would
‘““serve as an independent coun-
cilman who is only responsive to
the wishes of the citizens.”’

He now serves as treasurer of
the Northern Virginia Park Au-
thority.

Evening Star, April 5, 1968, p. C-2, c. 6.

————————Hf——-—— ——

Fairfax Will Take
Tract for Park

Fairfax City councilmen have
authorized condemnation pro-
ceedings to acquire a 17-acre
tract for a park near the middle
of the city’s southern boundary.
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The property, according to
Mayor Edgar A. Prichard, will
be purchased with the aid of
federal matching funds already
armarked for the project.

The city owns two other large
public recreation areas, the
19-acre E. Calvin Vandyck Park
on Route 237, near John C. Wood
Elementary School, and the
45-acre Daniel’s Run Park north
of Rte. 236 on the city's east
side. '

Evening Star, June 6, 1968, p. B-3, c. 7.

This is the location of Providence Park. E. Calvin Van Dyck Park was also

dedicated in 1968.

e —— 4 ——

Negro Backer’s
Car Vandalized

The campaign manager for
the first Negro to run for Fair-
fax City office revorted that her
car was vandalized last night
and an obscenity about the coun-
cil candidate painted on her
driveway.

Mrs. Philip Fisher, wife of a

current city councilman and
campaign manager for Henry
Minor, reported that at least two
dozen eggs were smeared inside
and outside her car. An obscene
word followed by Minor’s name
also was painted in silver on

the driveway.

Ewvening Star, June 8, 1968, p. A-10, c. 1.

Winner’s a Symbol
Of the New South

Hénry A. Minor of Fairfax
City last night became a symbol
of the new South while inside a
symbol of the old.

He learned he had become the
first Negro elected to public of-
fice in Northern Virginia since
Reconstruction while he was at-
tending a victory party in The
Mosby, named for Confzderate
military leader Col. John Single-
ton Mosby. '

Puffing on a cigar, the new
37-year-old member of the Fair-
fax City Council said: “I'm
going to serve all the people —
not just the Negroes — but the
white people too. '

Minor is a personnel specialist
for the Navy Department.

Zoning, long-range planning,
beautification and development
of a community center were
Minor’s campaign topics, the
same subjects that white, subur-
ban politicians like to talk about.

However, Minor is deeplv con-
cerned about the problems of
Fairfax City Negroes who num-
ber 250 of the city’s 23,000 resi-
dents.

‘““The city should provide free
legal service in order that
door-to-doorsales men won't
trick the poor into signing con-
tracts that keep.them deeply in
debt,’’ he said. '

Minor added that he strongly
supports the special committee
now studying whether Fairfax
City needs open Lousing laws.

*I think the committee will
find little or no prolem with

single family houses but some-
Continued on page 12 (gg_{
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The Funeval of Mr, Thalelher Perlins,
a well-known railroad machinist and in-
ventor, who died on Monday from the effects
of a {all on the iey sidewalk, took place yes-
terday from his lute residence, No. 330 North
Gilmor street, The Hev. .. Henry Brittain,
of Fuller Memorinl Baptist Church, con-
ducted the services, The pall-bearers were
Mr. John C. Davis, formerly master of trans-
portation of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad,
and Mesars, AL L, King, Wm, H. Shipley. Jas.
Reoves, James 1B, Hodeson and Wi, Prim-
rose, foremen at Mount Clare shops, The
remaing were placed in the mmausoleum &t
Mount Oliver Cemetery,

Baltimore Sun, January 11, 1883, p. 4, c. 4.

- r——

DEATH or Mgr. R. C. SymiTi.—Mr,
Richards Carson Smith. an Aloxandrian,
who resided fr severa! ycars in Balti-
more, died on Farurdey wornizg at the
resideace of his niece, Mis: Eliza Smith,
S18 King street, where he was visiting,
in his eighty-third yvear. He was a
son of the late Hugh Smith,was born and
reared in Alexandria, aod for many
years carriea on the Alexandria
foundrv, at the foot of Wolfe street,
which afterward became the extepsive
machine shops and car works of Swith
and Perkins. His acvcestors csme to
this city from Eogland about a hundred
yeara ago. The daceased had been in
delicate health for several yc;irs and on
Thursday suffered an attack of paraly-
sis from which he uever recovered.
His remaios were taken to Baltimore
for interment this morning.

Alexandria Gazette, December 27, 1897, p. 3, c. 2.

operationsin the spring of 1857 but thisendeavor was
short lived.®

Initially the Fairfax was used by the Orange &
AlexandriaR.R. asaballast train in the construction of
the line from Alexandriato Gordonsville, Virginia.
Thereafter, for ten years it worked the line from
Alexandriato Gordonsville.*

The Fairfax was heavily damaged in afire at
Warrenton, Virginiain 1857 and subsequently rebuilt.*
The Fairfax was captured by Union forces at the
Alexandriashopsin 1861. It was considered to be old
iron when it was taken by the Union Army. In 1864,
the Fairfax was sold to J.A. Graham, likely John
Andrew Graham, president of the Cumberland and
PennsylvaniaRailroad.** The Fairfax wasmost likely
employed thereafter by Cumberland and Pennsylvania
Railroad.

Another locomotive named Fairfax, also a4-4-
0, built by the Rhode Island L ocomotive wasthefirst
enginedelivered to the Shenandoah Valley Railroad in
July 1878.4> 4 A brassbell, cast in 1750, formerly the
plantation bell of Greenway Court in Clarke County,
thewilderness estate of Thomas 6" Lord Fairfax, was
mounted on the new engine.*

Thomas 6" Lord Fairfax was the proprietor of
the Northern Neck Land Grant of 5,000,000 acresand
for who the county and locomotive Fairfax taketheir
name.

(Endnotes)

! Alexandria Gazette, March 5, 1850. P. 3, c. 1.

2 Alexandria Gazette, September 17, 1851, p. 3, 2.

3 Alexandria Gazette, March 23, 1852, p. 2, c. 1.

# Thomas William Smith (1807-1869). Son of Hugh Smith (1769-
1856) and Elizabeth Watson (1773-1854); m. Ellen Wettles (1814-
1894). Both areinterred in Ivy Hill Cemetery, Alexandria, VA.

5 Alexandria Gazette, December 27, 1897, p. 3, c. 2.

6 National Intelligencer, March 25, 1833, p. 1, c. 3.

" Colburn’s Railroad Advocate, January 5, 1856, p. 4, c. 3.

8 Alexandria Gazette, April 1, 1850, p. 3, c. 5.

® Thatcher E. Perkins (1812-1884) was born Feb. 19, 1812, Wells,
York Co., Maine, son of Newman & Abigail Perkins. He was
orphaned at an early age. He was a gifted locomotive designer.
He was the Master of Machinery for the B& O Railroad, Baltimore
from 1847 to 1851. In 1851, he also cofounded the firm Smith &
Perkins, at the Virginia Locomotive & Car Works in Alexandria,
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Virginia. Thiscompany folded in 1857. In 1859, Perkins returned
to the B& O Railroad as Master of Machinery serving until 1865
when he resigned to accept the position of Engineer &
Superintendent of the Pittsburg Locomotive & Car Works. He
continued in this position until 1869 when he resigned to take
charge of the Machinery Department of the Louisville &
Nashville Railroad, in which position he remained until 1879
when he retired. He m/1 Nancy (1812-1880), d. of
paralysis, June 25, 1880; m/2 Marguerite E. Davidson (1839-
1897). He died Jan. 8, 1884, after slipping on ice and striking his
head near his home in Baltimore, MA; bur. Mt. Olivet Cem.,
Balti., MD.

10 Alexandria Gazette, February 4, 1851, p. 3, c. 1.

1 Daily Republic, January 24, 1851, p. 1. C. 7.

2 Alexandria Gazette, February 4, 1851, p. 3, c. 1.

13 Daily National Intelligencer, April 21, 1851, p. 3.

14 Alexandria Gazette, December 1, 1852, p. 3, c. 2.

5 Alexandria Gazette, September 3, 1851, p. 3, . 2.

16 Alexandria Gazette, April 3, 1852, p. 3, . 2.

17 Alexandria Gazette, May 21, 1853, p. 3, C. 2.

18 Alexandria Gazette, February 1, 1853, p. 3, c. 3. The Orange
was wrecked “near Manassas Station she broke both of her
axles, and was thrown over sideways, across the tracks.”

¥ Alexandria Gazette, September 26, 1851, p. 3, . 2.

2 Annual Reports of Public Officers of the State..., © 1852,
William F. Ritchie, Printer, Richmond, VA.

21 Alexandria Gazette, November 13, 1851, p. 3, C. 2.

2 Alexandria Gazette, September 10, 1852, p. 3, ¢. 3.

2 Alexandria Gazette, February 1, 1853, p. 3, c. 3.

2 Evening Star, June 27, 1854, p. 4, c. 1.

% Evening Star. October 4, 1854, p. 3. C. 2.

% Alexandria Gazette, September 24, 1855, p. 3, . 4.

27 Alexandria Gazette, January 26, 1856, p. 3, c. 3.

2 Alexandria Gazette, January 26, 1856, p. 3, c. 4.

2 Evening Star, July 31, 1856, p. 4, c. 1.

% Daily Union, December 5, 1855, p. 3, c. 5.

1 Evening Star, May 12, 185, p. 3, c. 1.

%2 Alexandria Gazette, June 13, 1853, p. 2, C. 7.

% Bell, J. Snowden, Early Motive Power of the Baltimore and
Ohio Railroad, © 1912, Angus Sinclair Co. Publishers, New York,
NY. “THATCHER PERKINS, who succeeded Henry Tyson,
commenced his second term as Master of Machinery, December
1, 1859, having previously held that office from June 1, 1847,
until February 12, 1851. His mechanical skill and abilities were
of ahigh order, and it is to be regretted that the information as
to his life and work, which has been developed by a careful
enquiry, is so limited that only a brief and imperfect record can
be here presented. Born in the State of Maine, about 1810, he
was left an orphan at an early age, and through his natural
abilities, energy, and industry, attained prominence as a
mechanic, while yet a comparatively young man. No record of
his life has been found prior to his appointment as Master of
Machinery in 1847. He occupied this position until 1851, when
he resigned to go into the manufacture of locomotives, as a
member of thefirm of Smith & Perkins, at the VirginiaLocomotive
Works, Alexandria, Va. His retirement from the Machinery
Department is noted in the Twenty-fifth Annual Report, 1851,
with the statement that he “for several years conducted it with
much ability.” Smith & Perkins built two locomotives for the

Baltimore & Ohio Railroad, two for the Allegheny Portage, Pa.,
fifteen for the Pennsylvania Railroad, and others for Southern
roads, but while their work was good, their business was not a
profitable one, and they discontinued it in 1858. Mr. Perkins
returned to the service of the Baltimore & Ohio Railroad, as M aster
of Machinery, December |, 1859, and held that position until May
10, 1865, when he resigned, having accepted the position of
Engineer and Superintendent of the Pittsburgh Locomotive and
Car Works, the erection of the plant of which was commenced in
that year under his supervision. He continued in charge of this
establishment until 1869, when he resigned to take charge of the
Machinery Department of the Louisville & Nashville Railroad, in
which position he remained until about 1879. He died in Baltimore
in 1882. Mr. Perkins' administrations of the Machinery Department
were characterized by many improvements, both in detail and
general design, which he made in the motive power, these
including improved features introduced in the rebuilding of the
camel and other old engines, and the ten-wheel and eight-wheel-
connected engines which have been previously described. His
designs were always thoroughly practical, and when he considered
them desirable, he adopted such details as he found to have been
approved in the practice of others. The experience of the writer
while serving under him was to the effect that among other sound
and useful applications of his mechanical skill and ability, he
realized and acted upon the great importance of providing strong
and substantial locomotive frames, and any errors which he made
as to strength of materials were always on the side of safety. He
early applied, and it is believed originally designed, the so-called
solid ended side rod, and substituted cast for wrought iron in
rockers, links, and other parts, with a reduction in cost, without
impairment of efficiency. He is also to be credited with, or be held
responsible for, accordingly as the reader may consider most
fitting, the introduction of the extended smoke-box on the
Baltimore & Ohio Railroad, having fitted one of his .ten-wheel
engines with it as early as 1864, long before the outbreak of the
epidemic of its application which spread over the country in the
early eighties, and which the railroads have not even yet entirely
recovered from. In all other respects, however, the correctness of
his judgment and the value of the results which he accomplished
do not appear to have been doubted or questioned.

% Richards Carson Smith (1814-1897). Son of Hugh Smith (1769-
1856) and Elizabeth Watson (1773-1854); (American Railroad
Journal, V. X11, No. 2, p. 32, January 12, 1856, J.H. Schultz & Co.,
NY)

% Baltimore Sun, November 14, 1851, p. 4, c.

% Evening Star, March 21, 1855, p. 4, c. 6.

87 American Railroad Journal, V. 11, No. 60, December 15, 1855.
% Baltimore Sun, May 29, 1857, p. 4, c. 1.

% Governor’s Message and Annua Report of the Public Officers
of the State of the Board of Directors, Visitors, Superintendents
and Other Agents of Public Institutions or Interests of Virginia, ©
1852, William F. Ritchie, Richmond, Virginia.

4 The States, June 9, 1857, p. 2, c. 4.

“ Most likely John Andrew Graham, President of both the Mount
Savage Iron Works and Cumberland & Pennsylvania Railroad.
42 Shepherdstown Register, July 13, 1878, p. 2, ¢. 1.

“ Brown, Jr. Stuart E., Annals of Clarke County, Virginia, v. 1, ©
1983, VirginiaBook Company, Berryville, VA.

4 Spirit of Jefferson, May 25, 1880, p. 3, c. 2.
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50 Years Ago continued

thing might be needed to de-
segregate apartments,”” he ex-
plained..

The fortures of the Minor fam-
ily have been connected with
land. His grandfather worked on
a dairy farm in Vienna and pur-
chased 12 acres of it from the
owLer. With the shifting devlop-
ment pattern of V'enna, the
farmland suddenly found itself
facing Main St.reet and the Mi-
nors gamed a dependable in-
come:.

Although he criticizes the cur-
rent black power movement, Mi-
nor decided to enter politics be-
cause of militant Negro leader
H. Rap Brown. .

“When Brown was in jail in
Alexandria some of the Negro
children in Fairfax threw stones
at police ‘cers and some of the
city officials really became wor-
ried. . . . I decided that if I ran,
communications between city
hall -and Negro residents might
improve,” he erplained. .

Minor said he favored the
black power movement when it
began but added that it has now
become ‘‘warped with militants
who just want to rebel.

“Just the fact that I ran for
office, I think, has given Negro
residents of Fairfax more of a
feeling of kinship with the com-
munity.

““Now that I'm elected—
well—that’'s what black power
really is: the power of getting
enough votes to win,” Minor
said.

Evening Star, June 12, 1968, p. B-4, c. 1.
Henty Andrew Minor (1930-2016) served one term on the Fairfax City
Council. Henty was born in Vienna, VA in 1930. He retited from the U.S.

Navy in 1977 and moved to Henderson, Nevada. He wrote "Little Town
in Virginia: It All Started in Vienna," which was published in 2001.
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100 Years Ago

FAIRFAX COURT HOUSE, VA.

The executive board of the Fairfax
Chapter of the Red Cross met Baster
Sunday at the home of the president,
R. Walton Moore. BSix of the eight
branches of the county were repre-
sented. Col. Rose of the ordnance de-

partment, who had recently returned
from France, gave valuable information
ahout the needs of the organization

“over there.” Resin Farr of Itimore
was an Easter guest of his mother Mrs.
R. R. Farr. Senator and Mrs. R. E.
Thornton, who have spent the winter in
Washington, were runnt visitors at
their summer home hers.,B Benator and
Mrs. Lucian Kelth and Miks Kate mnn
of W:rnntun. were wesk end

Mr. and Mrs. 'rhomu R, Kal :I(g-.
Normon J. or and ‘children, who
have been guests at the rectory, h'l.va

returned to thnlr home n Brooklyn, N.

Y. Benator and Myors and

daughter of Hontlnl. were Bunday
ests of Mrs. W. P. Moncure. Mrs
. B. McCandlish ﬁ Piedmont, W. Va.,

was n recent est of relatives here

Miss Dorothy ?"orﬂ s home for the

Easter holidays.

Evening Star, April, 7, 1918, p. 50.

e — 4 E——
TO CALL ONLY COLORED MEN.

Secretary of Fairfax County Board

Gets Notice of Next Camp Lee Need.

FAIRFAX, Va. April 10.—F. W. Rich-
ardson, secretary of the local exemp-
tion board for Fairfax county,. has been
notified by the military authorities that
on the next call for men to be sent to
Camp Lee only colored- are wanted.
Instructions call for nine men to be

ordered to report and the call for them
will be sent out fAomewhera between
April 26 and May 1.

These men will ba credited to the
second call: Fairfax county completed
its guota under the flrst call last No-
vember.

Colored men employed conslstently in
agricultural work will be excused.

Evening Star, April 10, 1918, p. 23.
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100 Years Ago

REV. DR. FRANK PAGE DIES
WHEN OPERATION FAILS

Fairfax Pastor Succumbs in Emer-
gency Hospital After Relapse.
0f Prominent Family.

The Fair Facs Gazette Spring 2018

150 Years Ago

Ariest o A Lorsk Trirer.—Several horses
havo been stolen in [airfax county of late, and
among them one from Mr. J. J. Newcombe,
near Iairfax station. Mr. N. went to Wash-
ington, aad, on Tuesday, while prosecuting in-
quiries for his horse at the Bazaar, he recognized
a man he had seen near his house the day his
horse wad stolen, and arcested him on his own

Rev. Dr. Frank Page, rector of Zion
Epliscopal parish, Fairfax, Va., diled
¥esterday in Emergency Hospital after
an {llness of several weaks. Funeral
mervices are to be held tomorrow in
the church at Fairfax and Interment

is to be in the cemetery there at 11
©'alock tomorrow morning.

Rev. Dr. Page was taken ill about
two months ago with what was diag-
nosed as pneumonia. After passing the
critical atage of the illness, however,
he failed to galn strength, and about
two weeks ago he was removed to
Emergency Hoapital to be operated
upon. Faor B few days after the op-

eration it was theught he was on the
road to recovery, but during the first
part of this week a relapse occurred
resulting in hin death yeaterday.

Rev. Dr. Page was s brother of
Thomas Nelson Page, Amerlcan am-
bassador to Italy, and of Roswell Page,
second auditor of Virginia. He was a
son of Maj. John Page of Hanover
county, Va., and was a direct de-
scendant of Govs. Page and Nelson,
two of Virginia’s ¢hief executives,

He was educated for the ministry at
Virginia Theological Seminary, his first
charge after assuming orders being at
Falrfax. YLater he had charge of par-
fsheas at Waco, Tex., and in Brooklyn,
returning to Falrfax a few years ago.

Rev. Dr. Page wae twice married.
His nrat wife was Mlss Lettie Morris
of Hanover county, Threa children
survive that union, John Page of Bir-
mingham, Ala.; Mrs. Norman J. Gaynor
of New York and Mre. J, Packard Lalrd
of Philadelphia. Hls second wife wasa
Misn Willie SBchooler of Fredericksburg,
Y&., who survives him.

Ewvening Star, April 19, 1918, p. 11.

Rev. FrankPage (1849-1918) was Rector of Truro Episcopal Church from
1879-1889 and again from 1911 until his death. Page Avenue in the City of
Fairfax is named in his honor. The author and Rev. Frank Page are 4th
cousins 3x's removed (see Cousins explantion on pg, 4).

responsibility. While engaged i1 doing so, Mr.
Amos ox, of Fairfax, who was looking for a
horse that had been stolen from Mrs, Kidwell,
approached, and reeogaized the horse, in one
tho man was even then trying to sell. Mr.
Win. Steele, whn was also in Washington, was
sent for, and identified the man arrested by
Newecombe, as Willian Payne, a notorious
horsa thief, and who recently broke jail at
Fairfax Court Ilouse, where he was confined
on the very same charge. FHe 1y undoubted.
iy onc (amd an active one) of a very dan-
gerous gang of horse thieves, and it will doubt-
less go very hard with him when he i3 brought
to trial.

Alexandria Gazette, April 2, 1868, p. 3.

GRrAPES AND HOPS IN FaIrRPAX,—It is esti-
mated that there will be plantod the present
scason in Fairfax county one hundred acresin
grapes, In addition to this, a farmer ot expe-
rience and capital will commence the raising
of hops, aud is quite sanguine of success,

Richmond Whig, Aptil 17, 1868, p. 4.
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J. Ranporrir TuCKER addcessed the people
at Fairfax C. H., on Monday, in a most able

aed elogueat speech, in opposition to the mon-
strosity, called tha proposed Coastitation of

Virginia. The sprech had a fine eff:ot, and
wu tzast will aid 1o bringiog out a full vote of

the Conservatives.
Alexandria Gazetre, May 20, 1868, p. 3.

e —

DB. ALBERT O. FOX, having located at

_Fairfax C. H., respectfully affers his pro-

fessional services to the people of that vicinity.
Ferirfax C. H., ap 29—2awdw

Alexandria Gazette, May 28, 1868, p. 2.

NEw STAGE LINE.~Arrangements are on
foot for establishing & line of stages between
Fairfax Court House and Vienna Station, on
the Alexandria, Loudoun and Hampshire Rail-
road, conpecting with the morning and even-
ing trains now running on that road. It is
said that the convenience to be afforded by such
a line as the one proposed will insure it pat-

ronage sufficient to keep it in operation.
Alexandria Gagette, June 6, 1868, p. 4.

200 Years Ago

Srexerr H. Coxk will by appointment
perform divine service on Wednesday
next at twelve oclock st Fairfax Court

200 Years Ago
Sully for Sale.

HIS Estate, situated in the county

of Fairfax, twenty two miles from
Alexandria, and the same distance frowm
"Georgetown, contains about seven hund-
red aud fifty acres. Little River Turan-
pike passes theough it half a mjle from
the dwelling house. The situation is
handsome, and remarkably healthy ; the
water is good and abundant. ‘The soil
which was originally excellent, has for

» M

some years past had the advant of im-
proving husbandry, Plaister of Paris act-
ing with powerful and immediate effect
on all grasses aond grains. The fields
present a good surface for cultivation,
and those now untilled are covered with
red clover, The orchards lrc_ver¥ large
and thrifty ; the cellection of table fruit
is cheice »nd, various. The mansica is
spacinus amnd well constructed : the out-
houses are cenveniently situated, and
the' whole have been lately thoroughly
crepaired and paintéd. The tarm hou-
ses,which are all nearly new,are expsn-
sive and excelient in their kind. ,

For a gentleman of leisure this would
be a delightful residence 3 and a profita-
bie estate for an active tarmer. The title
is.indisputable, and perfectly unincum-
bered. .

A number of well taught osderly young
men, with good stocksand farming uten-
sils of all hinds and the crops of the pre-
sent year if Jdesired, will be at the com-
mand of the purchaser.

Application may be mmade to the sub-
scriber. living o' the premiases, next the
post-office at PleasantValley, i Fairfax,

FRANCIS LIGHTFOOT LEE.

September 19 tufet

Alexandyia Gazette, April 18, 1818, p. 4.

- 4 E———

In the Next Issue...

Fairfax Herald & Hawhurst's Store. These two
longtimeFairfax busnessesoccupied Lot #12intheorigind

Alexandria Herald, April 3, 1818, p. 3 plan of the Town of Providence (now Fairfax). They were
Spencer Houghton Cone (1785-1855) was a Baptist Minister and Chaplain |ocated on thes.e. corner of Main Street and Chain Bndge

of the United States House of Representatives from 1815-1816. Road.
14
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| ANNIVERSARY
| GEORGE MASON

UNIVERSITY

SPEAKERS

" HISTORIC FAIRFAX CITY, INC. [
DR. ANGEL CABRERA
ANNUAL MEETING MASON PRESIDENT

WWW.HISTORICFAIRFAX.ORG

WHO WAS MAYOR JOHN WOOD? WHAT IS
THE HISTORY OF GEORGE MASON PAGE JOHNSON
UNIVERSITY? WHY HERE? corHNIIEISRSE:?Eh:uEUF:EOF

MAY 2, 2018 CITY OF FAIRFAX
7:00PM - 8:30PM 404

COLLECTIONS AND

ALL WELCOME EXHIBITIONS

OLD TOWN HALL UPSTAIRS ARCHIVIST
3999 UNIVERSITY DR. FAIRFAX, VA
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